
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING OCTOBER16,  2013    Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY OCTOBER 16, 2013 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
This public comment portion of this agenda provides an opportunity for the public to address the Board of 
Directors on items not listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public at large and are within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of this Board.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from taking action on matters 
discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Board does not 
respond to public comments at this time.  Comments that concern individual customer accounts are welcome, 
however we encourage doing so only after other administrative avenues for redress have been fully exhausted.  
In all cases, your concerns will be referred to the General Manager for review and a timely response.  
 
Comments are to be limited to three minutes per speaker and shall not exceed a total of 20 minutes.  All 
comments are to be directed to the Board of Directors and shall not consist of any personal attacks.  Members 
of the public are expected to maintain a professional, courteous decorum during their comments.  Public input 
may be offered on an agenda item when the item comes up for discussion and/or action.  Members of the 
public who wish to speak shall proceed to the podium when called by the President of the Board.  Please state 
your name and community of residence for the record. 
 

 
 
 
 
Pg. 1-4 
 
Pg. 5-19 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 
be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 
individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 
 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the September 18, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 

B. Approve September 2013 Check Audit Report 
 

 7. CONSERVATION COORDINATOR REPORT 
District Conversation Coordinator Deborah Bollinger to report. 

  

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING OCTOBER16,  2013    Page 2 of 3 
 

Pg. 20-175 8. APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH CONSULTING FIRM BASED ON REQUESTS FOR 
PROPOSAL FOR EXECUTIVE RECRUITMENT SERVICES – HIRING OF GENERAL 
MANAGER 
Recommend that the General Manager Search Committee will have a recommendation of one of the 
firms at the meeting.  The motion to approve should include authorization to increase the 
Employment Recruiting Expense budget by the amount of the proposal accepted; the funding to 
come from net revenue available in the 13-14 budget. 
 

Pg. 176-
178 

9. LETTER OF RESIGNATION OF STEVEN WHITMAN FROM CITIZENS ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE 
Recommend that the Board accept Steven Whitman’s letter of resignation and authorize the Board 
President to send a letter of appreciation for his service to the Committee. 
 

Pg. 179-
183 

10 DECLARE MINOR VALUE OBSOLETE FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF BY DONATION TO LOCAL  NON-
PROFITS THRIFT SHOPS. 
Recommend that the Board declare property surplus and authorize General Manager to dispose of 
surplus furniture and equipment by donation to local non-profit thrift shops. 
 

 11. 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
 

AD HOC: 
A. GENERAL MANAGER SEARCH: Director Reynolds and President Luckman 
B. ADMINISTRATION CODE UPDATE PROJECT: Vice President  Fuller and President 

Luckman 
C. HOSPITAL WASTEWATER PROJECT: President Luckman and Vice President  

Fuller 
D. MOJAVE WATER AGENCY INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT 

PLAN COMMITTEE: President  Luckman and Vice President Fuller 
E. RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Fuller and Director 

Reynolds 
F. TANK RESTORATION PROJECT: Director Wilson and Director Johnson 

 

STANDING: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Vice President  

Fuller:   Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. FINANCE: Vice President Fuller and Director Johnson 

 

 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may 
not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 14. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 15. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

  



                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING OCTOBER16,  2013    Page 3 of 3 
 

 16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 17. ADJOURNMENT 
 

   
   INFORMATION 
   The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
   Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin  
   Water District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related  
   modification or accommodation. 
 
   Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available  
   for public inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
 This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on October 23 at 7:00 pm and October 30 at 7:00 pm.   
 DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 



 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

September 18, 2013 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Gary Wilson 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Susan Greer, Acting General Manager 
Marie Salsberry, HR Manager/Administrative Specialist 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel 
Mike Metts, District Engineer 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 11 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
President Luckman suggested that Item #9 be considered following Item #6. 
MSC Fuller/Reynolds 5/0 to approve the modified agenda, moving Item #9 to follow Item #6, Consent 

Calendar. 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Reynolds/Fuller 5/0 to approve the draft minutes of the September 4, 2013 Regular meeting of the Board 

of Directors and to approve the August 2013 Check Audit Report. 
 
9. RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR RANDY LITTLE UPON HIS 25-YEAR ANNIVERSARY 

WITH JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
President Luckman read aloud the resolution honoring Randy Little for his 25 years of service to the District. 
MSC Reynolds/Johnson 4/1 to approve Resolution #13-913 Recognizing Randy Little for 25 years of service to 

the District. 
   Fuller  Aye 
   Johnson Aye 

Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
7. APPOINTMENT OF JBWD DIRECTORS TO ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER 



AGENCIES (ACWA) COMMITTEES 
Acting General Manager Susan Greer reported that President Luckman has volunteered to serve on the ACWA 

Groundwater Committee and Vice President Fuller volunteered to serve on the ACWA Local Government 
Committee. Vice President Fuller stated she thinks JBWD’s representation on the ACWA committees will 
be of great benefit to the JBWD Board. President Luckman agreed that the District should have a presence 
at ACWA. 

MSC Johnson/Reynolds 4/1  to approve appointment of President Luckman to the ACWA Groundwater 
Committee and Vice President Fuller to the ACWA Local Government Committee. 

   Fuller  Aye 
   Johnson Aye 

Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
8. AWARD AGREEMENT TO WATER QUALITY SPECIALISTS FOR OPERATION OF THE HI-

DESERT MEDICAL CENTER WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
AGM Greer reported that construction of the plant is complete and the Board had previously approved selection 

of Water Quality Specialists to operate the plant. AGM Greer stated that a higher level of insurance should 
be required of the contractor and some other minor changes may be made to the proposed contract. 

MSC Fuller/Reynolds 4/1 to approve the agreement with Water Quality Specialists for operation of the Hi-
Desert Medical Center Wastewater Treatment Plant and to authorize the General Manager to make limited 
changes, if needed. 

   Fuller  Aye 
   Johnson Aye 

Luckman Aye  
   Reynolds Aye 
   Wilson  No 
 
10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
AD HOC COMMITTEES: 
A. GENERAL MANAGER SEARCH: Director Reynolds and President Luckman:   President Luckman 

reported that applications for the vacant general manager position are being received. A request for 
proposals is out for executive search firms and once a firm is chosen the employment applications will be 
forwarded to that firm. 

B. ADMINISTRATION CODE UPDATE PROJECT: Vice President Fuller and President Luckman: President 
Luckman stated that the Administration Code will be reviewed after the Rules and Regulations; review of 
the Rules and Regulations is underway. 

C. HOSPITAL WASTEWATER PROJECT: President Luckman and Vice President Fuller: President Luckman 
reported that the plant is operational. 

D. MOJAVE WATER AGENCY INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Vice President Fuller: President Luckman reported that she recently 
attended a meeting and that the agency is trying to combine similar projects from different agencies for a 
regional approach. 

E. RULES AND REGULATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Fuller and Director Reynolds:  Vice 
President Fuller reported that the committee expects to meet soon. 

F. TANK RESTORATION PROJECT: Director Wilson and Director Johnson: Director Wilson reported that 



he and Director Johnson met last week and agreed that the bid process should proceed. 
 

STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: President Luckman and Vice President Fuller: Public Outreach 

Consultant Kathleen Radnich reported the date for the ribbon-cutting ceremony for the Hi-Desert Water 
District Wastewater Treatment plant has been changed. The District’s main website will be www.jbwd.org 
but the web address www.jbwd.com will still work. The USGS presentation is scheduled for October 18th. 
The Committee is discussing using Twitter for emergency messages. 

B. FINANCE: Vice President Fuller and Director Johnson:  Vice President Fuller reported that the committee 
plans to meet mid-October. 

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None. 
 
12. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
AGM Greer reported that the twelve-inch mainline at Olympic has been covered with multiple loads of dirt and 

asphalt and the location will be kept on a watch-list to be checked after heavy rains. A customer request for 
a variance has been closed; the District engineer has researched all alternatives and the customer is unable to 
afford the viable options. She handed out and reported on last month’s field activities including the 
following: 374 water samples were collected during August, for bacteriological, lead and copper, and 
chlorine residual. There were seven mainline leaks and 16 service line leaks during August. Three reservoirs 
were surface-cleaned; seven air vacs were replaced, and maintenance was performed on 18 hydrants. 

AGM Greer reported that a new maximum contaminant level (MCL) of 10 parts per billion is being proposed 
by the state of California for hexavalent Chromium, or Chromium-6. She explained that the District is 
currently in compliance with all drinking water standards, but will exceed the proposed Chromium-6 MCL 
if it is adopted. She stated that the District will take any action necessary to comply with a new MCL for 
Chromium-6. 

 
13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Reynolds commented that he has attended ACWA conferences featuring discussions of Chromium-6, 

but he was surprised to hear that Chromium-6 occurs naturally in our area. He reported attending the 
Association of San Bernardino County Special Districts meeting where he saw a presentation on the Delta. 

Vice President Fuller commented that the District will research and comment on the proposed MCL for 
Chromium-6. She commented that this month the Cascade Solar project used 11 acre-feet of water and 
questioned whether that amount is considered insignificant, considering that the project permit stated the 
project would use an insignificant amount of water. 

Director Wilson stated he was unable to attend an earlier meeting regarding the District’s rate study, and he is 
opposed to any rate increases until there is an effort by the Board and District management to address 
excessive spending by the District. 

Director Johnson commented that he found the field report very helpful. He reported that he and Director 
Wilson, as the Tank Restoration Committee, visited District tank sites where he noticed that staff is doing a 
great job keeping the tank sites clean. 

President Luckman commented that 20 to 25 percent of energy use in California is devoted to water. 
 
14. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT 
District Counsel Gil Granito reported that he had attended the rate study workshop earlier where much of the 



discussion was related to conservation. He quoted the state constitution, Article 10 Section 2, “It is hereby 
declared that because of the conditions prevailing in this State the general welfare requires that the water 
resources of the state be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which they are capable, and that the 
waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use of water be prevented, and that the conservation 
of such waters is to be exercised with a view to the reasonable and beneficial use thereof in the interest of 
the people and for the public welfare.” 

 
15. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None. 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT  7:45 PM 
MSC Fuller/Johnson 5/0 to adjourn the September 18, 2013 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors. 
 
 Respectfully submitted:  

 
 
_________________________________ 
Susan Greer, Acting General Manager 
The next regular meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for October 2, 2013 at 7:00 pm. 

  
 





























































































































































































































































































































































 

 

   Certificate of Appreciation 

 

This certificate is presented to 

Steven Whitman 
In Appreciation for Service as a Member of the Joshua Basin Water District 

Citizens Advisory Committee 

___________________________     __________ 

President, Board of Directors 
 

 

 

 

Signature Date 














